

THE CDPAP PROGRAM INFORMATION GUIDE

&

PERSONAL ASSISTANT HANDBOOK

Revised December 2022

Community Home Health Care Fiscal Intermediary Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Program

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONSUMER DIRECTED PERSONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (PA)
THE ROLE OF COMMUNITY HOME HEALTH CARE
THE ROLE OF THE PERSONAL ASSISTANT (PA)
PERSONNEL FILES
WHILE WORKING WITH CLIENTS
LOITERING/VISITING
CULTURAL DIVERSITY
DEALING WITH CONFLICT
UNIVERSAL PRECAUTIONS/ STANDARD PRECAUTIONS
PREVENTION FROM NEEDLE STICK INJURIES
MEDICAL EMERGENCY / CONSUMER HOSPITALIZATIONS10
GENERAL RULES (CODE OF CONDUCT)10
ON-THE-JOB INJURIES
IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE
WORK TIME REPORTING10
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES POLICY11
PROHIBITING WORKPLACE HARASSMENT11
WAGE AND PAYROLL INFORMATION
WAGES13
OVERTIME
PAYROLL ERRORS14
MEAL PERIODS14
USE OF THE ELECTRONIC VISIT VERIFICATION SYSTEM (EVV)14
TIME AND ATTENDANCE GUIDE

COMPENSATION16
LIVE-IN PERSONAL ASSISTANTS
BENEFITS AND TIME OFF
WORKER'S COMPENSATION
DISABILITY INSURANCE
MEDICAL INSURANCE
SICK AND SAFE LEAVE
BENEFITS CONTINUATION (COBRA
PTO/UNPAID TIME OFF
JURY DUTY LEAVE
TIME OFF FOR VOTING24
HIPAA PRIVACY
FRAUD, WASTE AND ABUSE PREVENTION27
FACT-FINDING AND ISSUE RESOLUTION ("FAIR") PROGRAM AND ARBITRATION PROVISION (PA)
FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) & NEW YORK PAID FAMILY LEAVE (NYPFL) POLICY
NEW YORK CITY TEMPORARY SCHEDULE CHANGE LAW
COMMUNITY HOME HEALTH CARE PA CONTACT INFORMATION
HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
RECEIPT OF POLICY PROHIBITING WORKPLACE HARASSMENT

CONSUMER DIRECTED PERSONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (PA)

A Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Program (CDPAP) is an alternative to traditional home care. The CDPAP program is a Medicaid funded home care program that enables self-directing individuals or their Designated Representative, to assume the responsibilities of their own care. The Consumer and/or their Designated Representative is responsible for recruiting, interviewing, hiring, training, supervising, scheduling and termination.

THE ROLE OF COMMUNITY HOME HEALTH CARE

Community Home Health Care ("Community," the "Company" or the "FI") is the Fiscal Intermediary ("FI"). As the FI, Community Home Health Care will keep a record which consists of the Personal Assistant's ("PA's") original enrollment forms, annual health assessments and the information needed for payroll processing and benefit administration. To facilitate the Consumer or Designated Representative's role as the PA's employer, Community Home Health Care helps with processing the payroll, and administering any insurance, unemployment and worker compensation benefits for the PA. As a PA you are employed by the Consumer or their Designated Representative and not Community Home Health Care.

THE ROLE OF THE PERSONAL ASSISTANT (PA)

As a PA you are hired by the Consumer and/or Designated Representative to assist the Consumer with their individual needs to live safely in their home within the approved hours authorized by NYS Medicaid/Managed Care. By accepting this position, you are agreeing to accept training and supervision at the direction of the Consumer or their Designated Representative. You are responsible to complete the full enrollment forms and submit the documents needed to work to Community Home Health Care.

You may not begin working for a Consumer for any reason until your enrollment forms are completed and have been given authorization from Community Home Health Care to begin working. Your Consumer will be notified by Community Home Health Care when the approval for you to begin working can commence.

As a PA, the Department of Health requires that you pass and submit a physical within the past year, provide proof of immunizations, a PPD or Chest x-ray (if you have a history of a positive PPD), and complete a health assessment. All forms on our hiring requirements must also be completed before starting to provide services for the Consumer. Reach out to Community Home Health Care's HR Department for enrollment information.

It is your responsibility to keep your compliance up to date annually. The HR department at Community Home Health Care will attempt to reach out to you before your annual paperwork expires. In a case where any of the paperwork was not received in time you will not be permitted to continue to work for the Consumer.

As a Personal Assistant, am I required to have any license or certification?

As a PA you are not required to have any license or certification. This enables the Consumer to hire anyone of their choice.

Who trains me for my position as a PA Personal Assistant?

The PA Consumer or their Designated Representative is responsible for all your necessary training and information

What types of home care services can I provide as a PA Personal Assistant?

In the PA program, the Consumer or Designated Representative is responsible for creating and supervising the administration of the care plan. As a PA, you are responsible for providing all care the Consumer or Designated Representative requests.

How many hours of home care can I deliver for my Consumer?

Each PA Consumer is approved for a different number of hours. The Medicaid Managed Long Term Care (MLTC) or Department of Social Services, will determine the number of hours necessary and inform the Consumer. As the PA, you can only work for the number of hours for which the Consumer was approved by the MLTC. No extra hours will be approved or paid by Community Home Health Care.

Can children provide care for their parents?

Yes, unless you are your parent's designated representative. Can spouses provide care for each other?

No.

Can parents provide care for their children?

Parents can provide care for their children only if the child is an adult over the age of 21.

Working safely in the Consumer's home.

In the case of accidents that result in injury, regardless of how insignificant the injury may appear, the PA should immediately notify the Consumer or Designated Representative and Community Home Health Care. All injuries must be reported to Community Home Health Care within 24 hours.

Can I work for my Consumer while she is admitted to the hospital?

If a Consumer is hospitalized or admitted to a Health Care facility, you may not work. You are responsible for notifying Community and making sure not to submit any timesheets or clock ins during that time. Community Home Health Care will not remit payment for any unauthorized hours worked while a Consumer was hospitalized or admitted to a Health Care Facility.

May I drive my Consumer?

A PA may drive their Consumer only if the driving waiver is signed. A driving waiver can be found in the enrollment form and must be signed by you.

PERSONNEL FILES

Community Home Health Care maintains an official personnel file for all Personal Assistants on behalf of the Consumer. The personnel file includes information such as your job enrollment form, initial and annual health assessment and payroll records.

Community Home Health Care needs your help in keeping your personnel file accurate and up to date. Promptly notify your PA Representative of any changes to your name, home address, telephone number, healthcare status, and emergency contact(s).

Personnel files are the property of and are maintained by Community Home Health Care.

If you are applying for a mortgage or other credit or have another reason to allow outsiders to obtain information from your personnel record, you must provide Community Home Health Care with written authorization for release of information.

WHILE WORKING WITH CLIENTS

LOITERING/VISITING

Personal Assistants are requested to leave the premises of the Consumer's home or facility upon completion of scheduled shift.

Never bring children, family, friends, or pets to your Consumer's location, and under no circumstances should anybody visit you while you are working. This is a DOH violation and may result in termination at the discretion of the consumer.

CULTURAL DIVERSITY

The Personal Assistant may have a Consumer with cultural backgrounds and traditions different from his/her own. You must remember to respect and value each Consumer as an individual.

Cultural background can influence a variety of situations, for example:

- 1. How friendly your Consumer is toward strangers.
- 2. How they feel about having you or anyone else in their home.
- 3. How close they want you to stand to them when talking to them.

The religion of a Consumer and his/her family can also affect the way they behave. Religion can be very important to the Consumer who is very ill or dying. As a Personal Assistant, you must respect these differences, even if they are very different from your own. Never question the Consumer's religion, and refrain from discussing your own religious beliefs. Be aware of and honor any dietary restrictions your Consumer may have based on religious beliefs. Discuss with the nurse, Consumer, and family any meal planning and food preparation adjustment as needed. Keep physical contact to a minimum for those Consumer whose cultural or religious backgrounds make them less comfortable to being touched. You still need to care for the Consumer but talk to the nurse about ways to reduce unnecessary touching. Be sensitive to your Consumer's cultural and religious background. Treat all Consumer with dignity and respect. Expect your Consumer to treat you respectfully as well.

Suggested Conflict Resolution

Everyone has had to deal with difficult people or situations at one time or another. Learning to deal with the conflict through better listening and communication skills can be the key to solving the problem at hand. The following are suggestion methods for conflict resolution with your Consumer.

- 1. Stay calm
- 2. Assess the situation
- 3. Identify the problem
- 4. Describe the problem briefly and accurately to your designated contact person, i.e. family/supervisor/coordinator.
- 5. Confirm that you heard and understood.
- 6. Remember that you need to keep your client, client's family, or co-worker happy. You are the peacekeeper.
- 7. Listen to the person presenting the conflict. He/she should feel that you are interested and willing to help.
- 8. Interpersonal relationships are very important.

Do not escalate the situation. If a situation develops, and you feel unsafe, please contact emergency services. Our FI suggests you leave the home and contact the FI to inform us of the situation.

Interpersonal Relationships

Supportive Relationships

The relationship between the caregiver and the client is one of the most important elements in a successful home care situation. There are certain behaviors that will promote communication and convey caring to a client. Everyone wants to be listened to, care about, accepted, liked, respected, understood and regarded as capable or competent.

Clients must feel Supported

When a client feels respected and understood, he/she is less likely to be destructive, angry or uncooperative. When there is a mutual respect between the client and the caregiver, the tasks in the care plan will be more easily accomplished.

Supportive Communication

Communicating respect and support can be done both by what is said and how it is said. There are some phrases that will upset almost anybody such as "that's silly" or "do this or else." Equally important is the tone of voice in which the words are said. A simple phrase can be said in an angry tone that contradicts the words.

Non-verbal behavior such as good listening habits or body language is also important. Good listening includes nodding, repeating back what the client says and leaning forward. Facial expressions convey respect with a smile and attentive behavior. It helps to sit next to someone who is sitting, rather than standing over him/her. Touch, especially with the elderly, helps to convey warmth and interest. Some people do not like to be touched and their feelings should be respected.

You must keep communication open and positive through your tone of voice, facial expressions and body posture.

UNIVERSAL PRECAUTIONS/ STANDARD PRECAUTIONS

Includes:

- 1. Handwashing –some examples include:
 - Upon entering a Consumer's home
 - When hands are soiled
 - Between handling individual Consumers
 - Before contact with the face and mouth of the Consumer
 - After personal use of the bathroom
 - After changing or assisting with Consumer's personal needs/bathroom

- Before preparing meals and after preparing meals
- After housekeeping duties are preformed
- Before and after donning gloves
- 1. Use of PPE personal protective equipment: PPE is available for all Personal Assistants. Contact your PA Representative for details. PPE includes face masks, gloves, KN95 masks, gowns, and eye shields. The Fiscal Intermediary provides hand sanitizer and disinfectants as needed to ensure the safety of the Personal Assistants.
- 2. Respiratory hygiene
- 3. Sharps precautions
- 4. Cleaning and disinfecting environmental surfaces

Contact Precaution & Covid-19

With an abundance of caution, the Fiscal Intermediary monitors reports of the coronavirus. The Fiscal Intermediary follows the guidance provided by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the New York State and applicable local Departments of Health and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) to ensure that Personal Assistants are protected. The COVID-19 policy and process are followed and updated as needed.

ALL PERSONAL ASSISTANTS MUST REPORT TO THE CONSUMER IF THEY ARE COVID POSITIVE OR SYMPTOMATIC.

Prevention and protection are crucial to our FI. Here are a few ways to stay healthy according to the CDC:

- 1. Wear a mask while providing care to Consumer or when distance cannot be maintained.
- 2. Consumer should wear a mask when the Personal Assistant provides personal care to them.
- 3. Wash your hands.
- 4. Avoid close contact with people who are sick with symptoms or have been exposed to the virus.
- 5. Stay home when you are sick or are being tested for Covid-19.
- 6. Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth.
- 7. Cover your cough or sneeze with a tissue, then throw the tissue in the trash.
- 8. Clean and disinfect frequently touched objects and surfaces using a regular household cleaning spray or wipe.

- 9. Avoid congregate settings (crowded public places where close contact with others may occur. Examples include shopping centers, movie theaters, stadiums).
- 10. Practice social distancing by remaining out of congregate settings, avoiding mass gatherings, and maintaining distance (approximately 6 feet or 2 meters) from others when possible.
- 11. Follow the PPE guidelines and infection control policies.
- 12. Receive your flu vaccine during flu season.
- 13. Follow NY state travel guidance.

Wash your hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, especially after going to the bathroom, before eating, and after blowing your nose, coughing, and sneezing. <u>CDC hand washing protocol</u>. Always wash your hands with soap and water if hands are visibly dirty.

If soap and water are not readily available, use an alcohol-based hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol.

Follow CDC Requirements regarding face masks.

You can call your PA Representative or the Fiscal Intermediary with any concerns regarding Covid-19.

PREVENTION FROM NEEDLE STICK INJURIES

If your Consumer uses any injectable medication, they should be disposed of in a puncture proof container with a tight-fitting screw top.

Please notify the Fiscal Intermediary if you notice syringes being disposed of improperly.

If your Consumer uses any injectable medication, please shake out any bed linens/laundry carefully to avoid accidental needle stick from careless handling by Consumer /family/nurse.

If you get stuck by a needle stick it must be reported to the PA Representative immediately, and at the latest before the end of the shift, to ensure proper medical intervention is provided to you.

MEDICAL EMERGENCY/CONSUMER HOSPITALIZATIONS

If a medical emergency occurs while you are with a Consumer, below are suggestions and guidance on how to deal with the situation:

- 1. Seek emergency help as directed by the Consumer or dial 911.
- 2. Keep the consumer as comfortable as possible.
- 3. Observe the Consumer and report all symptoms to emergency personnel.

GENERAL RULES (CODE OF CONDUCT)

ON-THE JOB INJURY/WORKERS COMPENSATION

If you are injured on the job, you are required to call the PA Representative immediately and must complete a report related to a workplace injury to be eligible for Worker's Compensation. You must then complete the report and submit it in a timely fashion. it is best to file your claim while the incident and information is fresh. Please note that not all injuries will result in a paid claim. These requirements apply no matter how slight or minor the injury might seem. If you have questions about whether the injury is reportable, still call the PA Representative and ask – do not make these decisions on your own.

Your failure to follow this procedure may result in the appropriate workers' compensation report not being filed in accordance with the law, which may consequently jeopardize your right to benefits.

IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE

In compliance with the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended, Consumers are committed to employing only individuals who are authorized to work in the United States. Accordingly, each new Personal Assistant, as a condition of employment by the Consumer, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 and present acceptable documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility.

If a Personal Assistant is authorized to work in this country for a limited time, the individual will be required to submit proof of renewed employment eligibility prior to expiration of that period to remain employed by the Consumer.

WORK TIME REPORTING

All EVV records and timesheets generated by a Personal Assistant must be true, accurate, and complete. Improper or fraudulent reporting of any information is strictly prohibited and exposes the Personal Assistant and/or the Consumer to civil and criminal liability. The Fiscal Intermediary

will strictly enforce these requirements. In accordance with the FI's compliance to the 21st Century CURE's Act, all PAs are required to utilize EVV for time recording. Only in extenuating circumstances, and when approved by your FI Case Manager, can alternate time sheets be used. To that end, all timesheets must be completed and submitted within four weeks from the date of service, unless extenuating circumstances occurred, and were relayed to the FI Case Manager. The time that work starts, and ends must be clearly reported. The Consumer and the Personal Assistant must sign all timesheets and verify the date and the visit. Reporting hours worked when they were not worked or when the Personal Assistant was not authorized to perform services is strictly prohibited by this policy and the law.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES

Community expects consumer compliance in the following acts: the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) The law Prohibits any form of harassment or discrimination based on sexual orientation, race, age, sexual orientation, and religion. If you believe you have been subjected to harassment or discrimination, you may reach out to our FI to report the situation and we will work with you to address the issue.

PROHIBITING WORKPLACE HARASSMENT

We are committed to a work environment in which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity, free from all forms of unlawful discrimination. Sexual harassment or harassment based on an employee's race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability, or any other protected characteristic violates the law, has no place in the work environment, and is strictly prohibited. Every PA has the right to work free of harassment, sexual or otherwise and we prohibit unlawful harassment by all employees, including management.

Sexual Harassment - The following conduct constitutes sexual harassment and will not be tolerated:

Any unwelcome sexual advances, request for sexual favors, or other verbal comments, gestures or physical actions of a sexual or otherwise offensive nature, under any of the following circumstances:

- Coercing an individual to submit to such conduct as a term or condition of employment. This would include, but not be limited to, explicit or implicit promises, in return for sexual favors, of employment, career advancement or improvement in terms, conditions or benefits of employment (e.g., evaluations, promotion, transfer, training, awards, compensation, assigned duties, etc.).
- ii) Using an individual employee's submission to or rejection of such conduct as the basis for an employment-related decision. This would include, but not be limited to, explicit or implicit threats that the

employee's career or any terms, conditions or benefits of employment will be adversely affected if sexual advances or requests for sexual favors are rejected (e.g., non-promotion or transfer, reassignment to a less desirable position/location/work schedule, etc.).

Unreasonably interfering with an individual employee's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment, whether intentionally or not. Offensive conduct covered by this last category would include, but not be limited to, deliberately provocative behavior, unwelcome sexual flirtations, advances or propositions, abusive language or gestures, overtures, or statements of a sexual nature, unnecessary touching (e.g., patting, pinching, hugging, brushing up against another employee's body), graphic or verbal commentaries about an employee's body, sexually suggestive or explicit jokes, a display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or pictures (e.g., calendars), the use of sexually degrading comments, or offensive nonverbal behavior (e.g., leering or staring)

This applies equally to men and women, to same- and opposite-sex relationships, to supervisorsubordinate relationships, and to peer relationships. Depending on the extent of Community's exercise of control it may also apply to non-employees, such as vendors and other visitors.

- b. **Harassment -** The following conduct constitutes harassment other than sexual harassment and will not be tolerated.
 - i) Use of ethnic slurs or racial epithets.
 - ii) Telling jokes that may be construed as harassment of others based on their race, national origin, age, disability, or religious beliefs.
 - iii) The display of cartoons or other images (including images displayed on computers) that may be construed as harassment of others based on their race, national origin, age, disability, or religious beliefs.
- c. Any employee who finds another person's behavior to be offensive and who is comfortable doing so may directly inform such other person that such conduct is offensive to such employee and that it must stop. In any event, employees are required to use the complaint procedure set forth below.

ANTI-RETALIATION POLICY

No one will be subject to, and Community prohibits, any form of discipline, reprisal, intimidation, or retaliation for good faith reports or complaints of incidents of harassment of any kind, pursuing any discrimination claim, or cooperating in related investigations.

WAGE AND PAYROLL INFORMATION

Federal and State laws require Community Home Health Care to keep accurate records of time worked in order to calculate PA pay on behalf of the Consumer. Time worked is all the time actually spent on the job performing assigned duties within the authorized time.

You are not permitted to work anywhere else at the same time you are working for your Consumer. You may not work for the Consumer more than the allotted hours as set forth by the MLTC. If a PA works more hours than the MLTC authorizes, Community Homecare is not liable to pay for those hours as they are not considered PA hours, and the PA should expect payment from the consumer. This arrangement is not condoned or managed by Community .

Personal Assistants are paid on a weekly basis.

The payroll week starts on Saturday and ends on Friday. Hours should be worked according to the consumer's authorization and vendor's billing week.

For a PA to get paid, the PA must use EVV to clock in and out for their shift. Personal Assistants are not permitted to work or provide services to Consumers while the Consumer is admitted into a hospital, and unless otherwise authorized not allowed to provide services outside of New York State.

WAGES

You will be signing a New York Labor Law-compliant notice at the time of hire that states your basis of pay (salary, hourly) and your pay rate.

In addition, Personal Assistants will receive, for all Wage Parity cases, a Wage Parity benefit and/or cash in lieu of a benefit for the first 40 hours of work. Wage Parity will not be paid for hours worked above 40 per week. Community will also comply with any applicable local living wage and wage parity laws.

According to Consumer Directed regulations, a PA cannot work over 16 hours per day, unless working a 24-hour live-in case.

If you have any questions regarding your compensation, please contact the PA Representative.

OVERTIME

Personal Assistants will receive overtime pay in accordance with applicable federal and state law at a rate of one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 hours in any workweek. Overtime pay is based on hours actually worked. Any overtime work must be approved by your PA Representative before the overtime hours are worked.

Overtime will be paid based on your "regular rate of pay." The regular rate of pay may vary from week to week if you work jobs that have different or multiple rates of pay. If you ever have questions about how your overtime rate was computed, please call our FI.

PAYROLL ERRORS

You should review your payroll checks for errors. If you believe there are errors in your pay, including that you have been overpaid or underpaid, that improper deductions have been taken from your pay, or that your pay does not accurately reflect all hours worked, you must report your concerns to the PA Representative immediately. Community will promptly investigate all reported complaints and, if appropriate, take corrective action.

MEAL PERIODS

If you work for more than 6 consecutive hours, you are entitled to a meal period during your shift. However, it is required that one Personal Assistant be on duty at any given time during the Consumer's scheduled hours of service. Thus, it is customary for Personal Assistants to eat on the job without being relieved as they cannot abandon the Consumer.

Given the requirements that a Personal Assistant remain with the Consumer, you voluntarily consent to taking your meal period without being fully relieved of your duties and you understand and agree that this means that your meal period may be interrupted by a call to duty. However, you will receive compensation for time worked in accordance with applicable laws.

By signing this handbook, you understand that you are voluntarily consenting to taking your meal periods without being fully relieved of your duties.

USE OF THE ELECTRONIC VISIT VERIFICATION SYSTEM (EVV)

Electronic Visit Verification, or EVV, is required by all PAs under Federal Law: 21st Century Cures Act Public Law 114-255, Section 12006(a)(4)(B) Electronic Visit Verification system.

Community Home Health Care requires the use of an EVV when working with a Consumer. You are required to use the EVV system when you report to work for the Consumer, and when you have completed your shift. On the occasion, when calling from the Consumer's home phone is not possible, it must be discussed with the PA Representative. As soon as the PA Representative clears you to work, you will be provided with the option to use one of our three EVV methods: Landline, Mobile App, FOB Device.

It is prohibited to allow anyone else to use your PIN number, Mobile App or FOB Device to clock you in or out.

PA's must call in and out for each shift that is worked.

LIVE IN CASES

During your clock out call, you will be asked to certify whether you have received a Bona Fide Sleep Period and Bona Fide Meal Periods. You are required to explain whether any of your break times were interrupted during your clock out call. Failure to use the call-in system properly may cause a delay in your pay-

TIMESHEETS

In event that EVV cannot be accessed, reach out to the PA Representative for approval to use a timesheet.

Timesheets may be used but it must be submitted by Monday at 5pm, even on a holiday.

We strongly encourage your timesheets to be submitted on time so that we can ensure timely pay.

Electronic timesheets are available.

The week starts on Saturday, 12am and ends on Friday, 11:59pm. Timesheets should be filled out accordingly and hours should be accounted for based on a Saturday to Friday week schedule. Certain vendors have different week schedules for which you will follow the corresponding authorization week.

It is the responsibility of the PA and the Consumer to confirm that the hours on the timesheets are entirely accurate. Time worked is considered time spent on the job performing duties assigned and approved by the Consumer within the authorized number of hours per week.

Please be advised that all time sheets must be signed by the Consumer/Designated Representative and the PA at the end of each day, as this is an attestation that services were in fact provided.

Dates, times, signatures and PA and Consumer information must be filled out correctly. We will not be able to process incomplete paperwork.

CALL OUT:

TIME AND ATTENDANCE GUIDE

Landline/IVR and FOB Method:

CALL IN:

1.	Call 1877-833-4935	1.	Call 1877-833-4935
2.	Press 1 for CALL IN	2.	Press 2 for CALL OUT
3.	Enter your Assignment ID	3.	Enter your assignment ID
4.	The system will repeat the assignment you entered. Press 1 to confirm or 0 to re-enter & call is complete.	4.	4444. The system will repeat the assignment you entered. Press 1 to confirm or 0 to re-enter & call is complete.

5. Press 000 to complete the call

Rules:

- Call in/Call out: can only be done from the Consumer's home phone. Calling in from personal cell phone will not be allowed.
- A call out for a shift without a call in will NOT be accepted.
- Live in: when working on a live in case, you should call in regurlarly when you are on the case. The following morning, 8AM, you should clock out and immediately clock back in. This should be done every day at 8AM.
- Sabbath observant: Notify Community if you or the Consumer are Sabbath observant and therefore you cannot use the Consumer's phone.
- No direct phone number: Consumers may not always have a direct phone number. In such a case notify Community of the situtation.
- Rotary phone: The time attendence system will not work a rotary phone.
- Payroll is generated through the call in and call out system.

If you are experiencing problems with calling in or calling out, please notify Community immediately.

MOBILE APP

Please follow up with Community Home Health Care for Mobile App specific instructions.

COMPENSATION

Payroll checks will be mailed weekly to your home, or you can choose to receive your pay via Direct Deposit. Community Home Health Care highly recommends you choose the Direct Deposit benefit to avoid disruptions in check distribution due to weather or failed delivery methods. If you cannot arrange Direct Deposit into a bank account, please discuss with the PA Representative what other options might work for you as a preference above paper checks.

If you wish to receive Direct Deposit, please submit the Direct Deposit form found on the next page. Once signed up, your pay will be deposited in your bank account Friday morning at 6am. Your paystubs will be available to view online.

Please be aware that a pre-note must first be conducted when using a new Direct Deposit, therefore your first check will be mailed, and the rest of your checks will be deposited in your bank account Friday morning at 6am.

INSTRUCTIONS TO VIEW YOUR ONLINE PAY STUB

Login instructions;

- OPEN THE BROWSER
- GO TO: ess.adspays.com
- ENTER USERNAME: Your first name, first initial of your last name followed by the last for digits of your social security number (Ex for John Due – johnd1234)
- ENTER TEMPORARY PASSWORD: Your entire social security number (without dashes ex, 123456789) upon your first login attempt the system will prompt you to change the password, enter your new password twice <u>and be sure to</u> save it for your records.

NAVGITATION

- Click on "Pay History" on the top left of the page
- Scroll down the page to view



Jser Lo	gin	
User ID)	
Enter	your User ID	
Passw	ord	
	your Password	

	Home Pay History							
/oucher List	Employer Alternate Stalling (nr Feid	Type Direct Dates it	Number	Date 05/35/2014	From 09/02/2014	To (Gross Pay 525-55	Net Pay
スの	Atemate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	40056	08/05/2014	07/26/2014	06/01/2014	673.33	902.81
対象	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	39517	08/01/2014	07/19/2014	07/25/2014	529-33	381.04
7.0	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	38379	07/25/2014	07/12/2014	07/18/2014	673.33	502.81
7. 🗊	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	37831	07/18/2014	07/03/2014	07/11/2014	529.33	406-05
7 🗊	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	37286	07/11/2014	04/28/2014	07/04/2014	561.33	427.69
7.10	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	36715	07/03/2014	06/21/2014	06(27/2014	673.33	477.83
10	Alternate Staffing Inc Field	Direct Deposit	38975	05/30/2014	06/30/2014	06/30/2014	0.00	0.00

AVAILABLE FILTER OPTIONS

Filter Options						
Stub Number	Stub Number	Period From	Period From : mm/dd/yyyy			
Work Date	Work Date : mm/dd/yyyy	Period To	Period To : mm/dd/yyyy			
Gross Pay	Gross Pay Min	Net Pay	Net Pay Min			
	Gross Pay Max		Net Pay Max			
				Search Reset		

- □ Search for specific Voucher Number.
- □ Looking for a specific visit? enter the date in question to search.
- \Box Search for range of Gross Pay \$ amounts.
- □ Search Paystubs within Pay Period Begin and End dates.
- \Box Search for range of Net \$ amounts.
 - 9. To view or download paystubs, popups on your browser will need to be unblocked.
 - 10. If attempting to view a paystub on a mobile device the "desktop feature" may need to be activated.
 - 11. Paystubs will be available to view for 12 months.
 - 12. If you forget your password, please contact your payroll department to reset.

Direct Deposit Form

Community Home Health Care offers direct deposit to all Personal Assistants. This option, if you decide to choose it, allows Community Home Health Care to deposit your weekly pay into your own personal savings or checking accounts. Instead of receiving a check every week, your money will be available to you every Friday Morning. All who choose direct deposit direct deposit will have their paystubs available online to view and print. Paystubs will not be mailed.

If you still wish to receive your weekly pay stub in the mail from us, in the form of a non-negotiable check that cannot be cashed, please check the box below. If no box is on this form is checked, your paystubs will be accessible online and will not be mailed. If you receive the weekly pay stub in the mail it will not be available online

We ask anyone who would like to participate in direct deposit to fill in their account information below and return this page to your local Community Home Health Care Office. Attach either a blank voided check or a savings deposit slip or BOTH if splitting deposit. You cannot have direct deposit and receive a paycheck.

	PRINT ALL INFORMATION	
I authorize my payer to initiate e	't forget to staple your voided check or fi electronic credit entries and, if necessary ries made in error, to my financial institu	, debit entries and adjustments for
FIRST NAME:	LAST NAME:	
SS#		
HOME ADDRESS:		APT.#
СІТУ:	STATE:	
ZIP CODE:		
BANK NAME:		
BANK ADDRESS:		
CITY:	STATE:	
ZIP CODE:		
ROUTING NUMBER:	CHECKING ACCT#:	
DEPOSIT%:		

ROUTING NUMBER: ______ SAVINGS ACCT#: _____

DEPOSIT%: _____

Paystubs are available online unless otherwise requested.

PERSONAL ASSISTANT'S SIGNATURE:

DATE: _____

LIVE-IN PERSONAL ASSISTANTS

It is expected that you will only be required to work for 13 hours of the entire 24-hour shift you are assigned to be with the Consumer. It is expected that you will enjoy a total of at least 3 hours of Bona Fide Meal Periods as well as an 8-hour Bona Fide Sleep Period for each full 24-hour shift.

"<u>Bona Fide Meal Periods</u>" are meal periods (e.g., one each for breakfast, lunch, and dinner) that are uninterrupted, duty free, which is 1 hour in duration. You are not required to eat with the Consumer during your meal period or take your meal period during the same time that the Consumer eats his/her meal.

BENEFITS AND TIME OFF

WORKER'S COMPENSATION

If you are injured while on the job, you may be covered for the medical expenses you incur for the work-related injury and salary lost during the period that you are disabled from working. All Personal Assistants are required to report injuries immediately. Personal Assistants may forfeit any right to care by not promptly reporting to Community.

DISABILITY INSURANCE

You are entitled to New York State Disability benefits if you have a non-job-related illness and are unable to work for more than seven (7) days and are receiving medical care. If you are ill or require hospitalization, notify the office immediately. New York State Disability will pay up to 50% of your average/weekly salary (but no more than the maximum benefit allowed, currently \$170 per week), after the first seven (7) days of illness, and for up to 26 weeks. Personal Assistants on disability leave are still required to notify their PA Representative of their status and periodically check in with Community. Information about your condition and circumstances may be required before you are reinstated to work.

MEDICAL INSURANCE

Eligible Personal Assistants may enroll in a single, a single plus one dependent, or a family contract health insurance plan offered by Community . Eligibility will be defined by the specific insurance contract in effect. Information and enrollment forms may be obtained from Human Resources.

NYS SICK AND SAFE LEAVE

All Personal Assistants are entitled to sick and safe leave pursuant to the New York Paid Sick Leave Law. Personal Assistants may use this leave as soon as it has accrued. Personal assistants earn one hour of sick/safe leave for every 30 hours worked and can earn a maximum of 56 hours of sick/safe time per year.

Following a verbal or written request, sick/safe leave may be taken for any of the following reasons impacting you or a member of your family for whom you are providing care or assistance with care:

Sick Leave:

- For mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition, regardless of whether it has been diagnosed or requires medical care at the time of the request for leave; or
- For the diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury or health condition; or need for medical diagnosis or preventive care.

Safe Leave:

- For an absence from work when you or your family member has been the victim of domestic violence as defined by the State Human Rights Law, a family offense, sexual offense, stalking, or human trafficking due to any of the following as it relates to the domestic violence, family offense, sexual offense, stalking, or human trafficking:
- To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, rape crisis center, or other services program;
- To participate in safety planning, temporarily or permanently relocate, or take other actions to increase the safety of you or your family members;
- To meet with an attorney or other social services provider to obtain information and advice on, and prepare for or participate in any criminal or civil proceeding;
- To file a complaint or domestic incident report with law enforcement;
- To meet with a district attorney's office;
- To enroll children in a new school; or
- To take any other actions necessary to ensure the health or safety of you or your family member or to protect those who associate or work with you.

For the purposes of NYSLL, "family member" is defined as your child, spouse, domestic partner, parent, sibling, grandchild, or grandparent; and the child or parent of your spouse or domestic partner. "Parent" is defined as your biological, foster, step, or adoptive parent, or legal guardian, or a person who stood in loco parentis when you were a minor child. "Child" is defined as your biological, adopted, or foster child, a legal ward, or a child if you are standing in loco parentis.¹

¹ For Personal Assistants who work in New York City, pursuant to the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Time Act, "family member" is defined as your child (biological, adopted, or foster child; legal ward; child of an employee

Personal Assistants must provide reasonable notice of a foreseeable need to use sick and/or safe leave. When able, please provide notice to your Consumer before 9 AM that day. With respect to unforeseeable needs to use sick and/or safe leave, Personal Assistants should provide notice as soon as practicable under the circumstances. Personal Assistants can provide notice by contact the Case Manager via phone and email any important documents directly to the case manager.

Personal Assistants who use sick leave for three or more consecutive shifts may be required to provide (a) an attestation from a licensed medical provider supporting the existence of a need for sick leave, the amount of leave needed, and a date that you may return to work, or (ii) an attestation from you of your eligibility to leave.

For Personal Assistants who work in (in) Westchester County, pursuant to Westchester County's Earned Sick Leave Law and/or (ii) New York City, pursuant to the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Time Act, you are further permitted to use your paid sick leave if the Consumer directs you not to report to work due to a public health emergency or you need to care for a child whose school or childcare provider closed due to a public health emergency. Employees who work in Westchester County are, after 90 days of employment, further entitled to up to 40 hours of paid safe leave to attend/testify in criminal and/or civil court proceedings relating to domestic violence of human trafficking and/or to move to a safe location. For more information concerning how such safe leave interacts with the NYSLL, please contact Human Resources.

Please Note:

- Please Note: Any unused sick time not used by the end of the year will not be paid out, but rather up to 56 hours of unused sick time can be carried over into the next year. However, a maximum of 56 hours of sick time can be used per year.
- Sick Time can only be taken at a minimum of 4 hours increments.
- You must use all your sick time before taking unpaid sick time.
- If a Personal Assistant uses all vacation time, they can use up to 16 hours of sick time as PTO.
- A Personal Assistant may not take off more than their total allotted time off per year. After a Personal Assistant has exhausted his/her sick days, any additional callout will be deducted from the Personal Assistant's PTO bank.
- If a Personal Assistant exhausted his/her sick time and PTO balance and calls out without a sufficient doctor's note due to extenuating circumstances, further discussion may take place with the Consumer.

standing *in loco parentis*), spouse (current or former, and regardless of whether you reside with them), domestic partner (current or former, and regardless of whether you reside with them), parent, child or parent of your spouse or domestic partner, grandchild or grandparent, sibling (including half, adopted or step sibling), any other individual related to you by blood, and any other individual whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship.

Personal Assistants who misuse this sick and safe leave will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of employment.

In the event a Personal Assistant is terminated or resigns, accrued but unused sick time is not paid out to the Personal Assistant.

Policies concerning (i) Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) and (ii) New York Paid Family Leave (NYPFL) Law are contained later in this handbook.

BENEFITS CONTINUATION (COBRA)

The federal Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives Personal Assistants and their qualified beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health insurance coverage under Community 's health plan when a "qualifying event" would normally result in the loss of eligibility. Some common qualifying events are: resignation, termination of employment, death of an employee, a reduction in an employee's hours or a leave of absence, an employee's divorce or legal separation, and a dependent child no longer meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the Personal Assistant or beneficiary pays the full cost of coverage of the Company's group rates plus an administration fee, unless otherwise required by applicable law.

Community provides each eligible Personal Assistant with a written notice describing rights under COBRA when the Personal Assistant becomes eligible for coverage under the Company's health insurance plan. The notice contains important information about the Personal Assistant's rights and obligations.

NYC PTO/UNPAID TIME OFF

Personal Assistants, after one year of work, are entitled to up to three days of PTO in each calendar year, depending on average hours worked per week, and paid at their regular rate of compensation.

Note: Personal Assistants who work on cases that are reimbursed by Medicaid in whole or in part and in certain regions of the State are eligible to receive "wage parity" benefits in addition to minimum wage. The wage parity amounts vary from region to region and year to year. Information about wage parity will be distributed during orientation or can be requested from the Human Resources Representative. Any PTO provided as wage parity benefits count towards the PTO mentioned above and are not in addition to such PTO.

Requests for time off, whether for PTO or unpaid, must be approved by the Consumer. If there are further questions PA should speak to the Case Manager for further information regarding PTO.

JURY DUTY LEAVE

Personal Assistants are responsible for informing the PA Representative of their Jury Duty assignment as soon as possible. The PA Representative and Personal Assistant will work together to rearrange assignments as needed.

The Company, on behalf of the Consumer, will pay the Personal Assistant \$40 a day for the first three days of Jury Duty. The remainder of the Jury Duty will be unpaid.

TIME OFF FOR VOTING

If a Personal Assistant does not have 4 hours before or after their work shift from when the poll open or closes to vote, you are allowed to take 2 hours paid leave to vote. Personal Assistants must give notice to their PA Representative no later than 2 days before the election of their need for the 2 hours paid leave.

WORKING WHILE ON LEAVE

Personal Assistants on any leave of absence are prohibited from working for the Consumer during the leave period.

HIPAA PRIVACY

What is HIPAA?

HIPAA stands for Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended. It is a federal law the purpose of which is to protect the privacy of individually identifiable health information (also called "Protected Health Information" or "PHI") that is shared by an individual with doctors, nurses, hospitals, insurance companies and other health care providers.

What does the HIPAA Privacy Rule do?

The Privacy Rule assures that individuals' health information is properly protected while allowing appropriate uses of such information to provide and promote high quality health care. The Privacy Rule applies to all forms of personal health information – written, electronic or oral.

Who must follow the HIPAA Rules?

All health care providers – doctors, nurses, aides, insurance companies, health care agencies, hospitals, laboratories, and business associates of these persons must follow the HIPAA rules.

What is personal health information?

PHI is any information, including demographic data, that (1) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health condition of an individual, (2) the provision of health care to an individual, or (3) the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual, <u>and</u> that identifies the individual or which there is a reasonable basis to believe it can be used to identify the individual (e.g., name, address, birth date, social security number). PHI that is created, used, stored or disclosed via electronic devices is referred to as "Electronic Protected Health Information" or "ePHI."

How can PHI be used and disclosed legally?

For the Consumer to receive treatment and have the treatment paid for by their insurance company, PHI must be used and disclosed by the people involved in the care of the Consumer. PHI is used when it is shared, examined, applied, and analyzed. PHI is disclosed when it is released, transferred, or accessed in any way by outside the health care FI. PHI maybe used or disclosed in the following instances: (1) for treatment, payment and health care operations; (2) with special authorization or agreement from the Consumer or the Consumer's Designated Representative; (3) for disclosure to the Consumer; (4) for reasons incident to another permitted use and disclosure, provided reasonable safeguards are in place; (5) as required by law or necessary for public health activities; and (6) PHI where certain identifiers of the Consumer have been removed.

Can I tell if the Consumer says I can?

Disclosure may be made to family members, friends or other people that are authorized by the Consumer to receive his or her PHI; however, the Consumer may revoke this authorization at any time. In any other situation not described previously, you need to get the patient's written authorization to disclose any PHI.

What is "minimum necessary rule"?

Use or disclosure of PHI must be limited to the smallest amount that is needed to get a job done. This means that not all Personal Assistants may have the same amount of formation about a patient. Each Personal Assistant should have only the information that is necessary for them to carry out their job.

What happens if an individual or FI fails to follow these laws?

Failure to comply may result in civil and/or criminal penalties.

Civil Penalties:

• Currently range from \$100 to \$50,000 or more per violation, with a penalty cap of \$1,500,000 per calendar year.

Criminal penalties:

- Up to \$50,000 in fines and 1 year in prison for knowingly violating patient privacy.
- Up to \$100,000 in fines and 5 years in prison for obtaining PHI under false pretenses.
- Up to \$250,000 in fines and up to 10 years in prison for obtaining or disclosing PHI with intention to sell, transfer, or use identifiable health information for commercial advantage, personal gain or malicious harm.

Unintentional privacy violations can also attract significant penalties. **"I forgot"** or **"I did not know"** is **not a legal defense**. An example of this would be the failure to remove personally identifiable information from a fax.

Does HIPAA take precedence over other existing confidentiality laws?

In cases where state laws are stricter than the HIPAA rules, the state laws take precedence. An example is the HIV confidentiality laws.

FRAUD, WASTE AND ABUSE PREVENTION

COMPLIANCE PROGRAM

Community Home Health Care is dedicated to ensuring a culture of compliance, honesty and integrity. We have implemented a comprehensive Compliance Program that sets forth the standards of conduct that all individuals affiliated with Community Home Health Care are expected to follow in their employment or course of business dealings with Community and the Consumers for whom Community serves as a fiscal intermediary. The Compliance Program applies to all individuals affiliated with Community Home Health Care, including Board Members, Personal Assistants, Consumers, and other individuals or entities employed, affiliated or associated with Community (including, but not limited to, all contractors, subcontractors, agents, and other persons who perform functions or services on behalf of Community or otherwise contribute to Community 's entitlement to payment under Federal health care programs).

Community Home Health Care has a longstanding practice of fair and truthful dealing with Consumers, their families, personal assistants, the government, health professionals and others. Individuals associated with Community Home Health Care are prohibited from engaging in any act of fraud, abuse or waste, such as knowingly making false statements of material fact, in the preparation or submission of any claim for reimbursement under the Medicaid program or any other payor program. Compliance with this Policy is a condition of participation in the Community Home Health Care PA. Violation of this policy is grounds for immediate termination from the program.

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

The Compliance Program establishes general standards of conduct to which all individuals affiliated with Community Home Health Care must adhere. These standards assist Community Home Health Care in preventing fraud, waste and abuse in Federal health care programs and other payor programs and ensure Community Home Health Care's compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations and rules. The Compliance Program also establishes a system for monitoring adherence to these standards, investigation of violations and for sanctioning non-compliance.

All individuals affiliated with Community Home Health Care are required to cooperate fully with the requirements of the Compliance Program, to review and be familiar with the Standards of Conduct and all specific policies and procedures applicable to their duties. Individuals affiliated with Community Home Health Care that fail to do this are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment, termination of contract or affiliation with Community Home Health Care.

A. Definitions of Fraud, Abuse and Waste

Fraud is an intentional misrepresentation that, when relied on by a payor or other person, deceives that person to his or her detriment. Abusive tactics are broader than fraud and may include submitting deceptive or misleading claims to a government program like Medicaid or using a false

statement to support a claim. Waste may include other deceptive tactics, such as over-utilization of otherwise necessary services.

Types of fraud, abuse, or waste which may lead to liability are:

- 1. Knowingly filing a false or fraudulent claim for payments to Medicaid or another governmentally funded health care program, such as billing for services not actually provided;
- 2. Knowingly making or using a false record or statement to obtain payment on a false or fraudulent claim from Medicaid or other governmental program, such as documenting clinical care not actually provided;
- 3. Conspiring to defraud Medicaid or any other governmentally funded health care program by attempting to have a false or fraudulent claim paid; or
- 4. Knowingly making or using, or causing to be made or used, a false record to statement to conceal, avoid or decrease an obligation to pay or transmit money or property to the government.

Examples of the above include but are not limited to:

- 5. Completing timesheets for services not actually provided;
- 6. Paying an invoice known to be false;
- 7. Accepting or soliciting kickbacks or illegal inducements from vendors of services, or offering or paying kickbacks or illegal inducements to vendors of services;
- 8. Paying, offering gifts, money, remuneration or free services to entice a Medicaid recipient to use Community Home Health Care services;
- 9. Using Medicaid reimbursement to pay a personal expense;
- 10. Embezzling; and
- 11. Ordering and charging for medical services not necessary for the participant.

B. Mandatory Reporting Requirement

If any individual subject to this policy has reason to believe that anyone associated with Community Home Health Care has engaged in any fraud, abuse or waste, the individual has a duty to report any such observations and concerns immediately to the Compliance Officer, Boruch Kaller, at (845) 205-9440. You may anonymously report your concern to the Compliance Hotline at (845) 738-1305. Community Home Health Care has a policy of non-retaliation and non-intimidation for those who report known or suspected violations or who otherwise participate in good faith in our Compliance Program.

C. False Claims Laws and Whistleblower Protections

Fraud involving a claim submitted to the Federal or State government (for example, a false claim submitted for payment to Medicare or Medicaid) is prohibited by civil, administrative, and criminal laws, including the following:

- The Federal False Claims Act
- The Federal Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act
- State Laws pertaining to civil or criminal penalties for false claims and statements

A summary of these laws, as well as associated whistleblower protections, are contained in a Compliance Program Policy and Procedure entitled *Compliance with Applicable Federal and State False Claims Acts; Overview of the Laws Regarding False Claims and Whistleblower Protections.*

A copy of Community Home Health Care's Compliance Manual, containing the Standards of Conduct, Compliance Program Structure and Guidelines and Reporting Requirements, and the above referenced policy regarding false claims laws/whistleblower protections are provided to all Personal Assistants upon hire and at annual training sessions. These documents are also available upon request from the Compliance Officer.

D. Investigations and Corrective Action

Community Home Health Care will take any necessary action to respond appropriately to any substantiated offense and to prevent any further offenses, including but not limited to terminating workers or contractors. Offenses will be evaluated for voluntary self-disclosure under applicable laws, and when warranted, they will be referred to federal and state authorities. Community Home Health Care will cooperate with government officials investigating or prosecuting any individual referred by Community Home Health Care.

All instances of retaliation, retribution or harassment against Personal Assistants reporting a compliance issue will be brought to the attention of the Compliance Officer who will, in conjunction with Legal and Human Resources, investigate and determine the appropriate corrective action, if any.

If a Personal Assistant reports a concern regarding his or her own inappropriate or inadequate actions, reporting those concerns does not exempt him or her from the consequences of those

actions. Prompt and forthright disclosure of an error by a Personal Assistant, even if the error constitutes inappropriate or inadequate performance, will be considered a positive constructive action by the Personal Assistant.

Compliance with and the promotion of the Standards of Conduct will be a factor in evaluating the performance of Personal Assistants. Following the Standards of Conduct is not hard to do. Personal Assistants should not be apprehensive or frightened.

Personal Assistants may stop by in person and speak to the Compliance Officer located 49 N. Airmont Road, Montebello, NY 10901 or call Boruch Kaller, at (845) 205-9440.

FACT-FINDING AND ISSUE RESOLUTION ("FAIR") PROGRAM AND ARBITRATION PROVISION (PA)

The Fiscal Intermediary values each Personal Assistant and looks forward to good relations with and among all of its Personal Assistants. Occasionally, however, disagreements may arise between you and the Fiscal Intermediary or between Personal Assistants in a context that involves the Fiscal Intermediary. We believe that the resolution of such disagreements will be best accomplished by internal dispute resolution and, where that fails, by binding arbitration that is conducted by an arbitrator. To facilitate expeditious and impartial resolution of any such disagreements that may arise as a result of Your provision of services to the Consumer and/or Your enrollment with Community Home Health Care to process Your pay, the Fiscal Intermediary has adopted this Fact-finding and Issue Resolution Program (the "FAIR Program").

The FAIR Program is an essential element of your provision of services to the Consumer and/or continued provision of services, and it constitutes a binding agreement between you and the Fiscal Intermediary. You indicate your agreement to be bound by the FAIR Program's terms and conditions by signing your name at the end of this handbook and beginning or continuing your provision of services after receiving the handbook ("Effective Date").

The FAIR Program will cover any Claim between You and the Fiscal Intermediary (as these terms are defined below) that is asserted after the Effective Date, regardless of whether any such Claim arose before or after the Effective Date, and regardless of whether such Claim was initially raised before the Effective Date. The FAIR Program also applies to Claims made after your relationship with the Fiscal Intermediary ends.

For purposes of the FAIR Program, "the Fiscal Intermediary" means Community Home Health Care, each of its subsidiaries, affiliates, and successor entities, as well each of their partners, officers, directors, owners, principals, members, agents, Personal Assistants and employees against whom a Claim is asserted in connection with their duties for or in relation to the Fiscal Intermediary.

"You" and "Your" refers to you, the Personal Assistant, and any other person who may assert your rights.

"Claim" means any claim, cause of action, controversy, or other dispute between the Fiscal Intermediary and You that arises out of, relates to, or is in connection with (1) Your enrollment with the Fiscal Intermediary for provision of PA services, (2) Your disengagement from the Fiscal Intermediary, or (3) Your termination of employment with a Consumer who is enrolled with the Fiscal Intermediary, <u>and</u> where that Claim is based on a legally protected right that could otherwise be resolved by a court, excluding only the disputes listed under "Are any Claims not Covered by the FAIR Program" below. "Claim" includes any disputes about Your enrollment in the Fiscal Intermediary's PA, termination of enrollment in the PA, wages or compensation, discipline, leaves of absence, accommodations, and workplace treatment as well as the Fiscal Intermediary's policies and practices (including any pattern, practice, act, or omissions) relating to such matters, including, without limitation, any Claim that may arise under the following laws: (1) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (2) Civil Rights Act of 1991, (3) Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, (4) Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (5) The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 or

any state wage and hour laws, such as the New York Labor Law, (6) New York Public Health Law Section 3614- c, also known as the Wage Parity Law, (7) Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (8) Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, (9) Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, (10) Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, (11) Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act of 1988, (12) any state or local anti-discrimination, anti- retaliation, or whistleblower laws (including, without limitation, the New York State Human Rights Law and the New York State Whistleblower Law), (13) any other federal, state, or local statute, regulation, or common-law doctrine regarding employment, employment discrimination, harassment, terms and conditions of employment, termination of employment, compensation, breach of contract, or defamation, and (14) disputes about the validity, enforceability, coverage or scope of the FAIR Program or any part thereof. "Claim" means not only initial claims but also counterclaims, cross-claims and third-party claims, regardless of whether such claims seek legal, equitable, or declaratory relief. A legally protected right means any right that is guaranteed to You or protected for You by statute, regulation, ordinance, constitution, contract, common law, or other law.

<u>Are any Claims not Covered by the FAIR Program?</u> Yes. The term "Claim" does not include any claim, controversy, or other dispute between the Fiscal Intermediary and You: (a) for injunctive or equitable relief for breach of a restrictive covenant (e.g., non-competition covenant, non-solicitation covenant, anti-raiding covenant), unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential information or trade secrets, or similar unfair competition; (b) for workers' compensation benefits (except for claims of interference or retaliation under the workers' compensation law); (c) for unemployment compensation benefits; (d) for employee welfare or retirement benefits governed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ("ERISA") (except for claims for interference or retaliation under ERISA); (e) for unfair labor practice charges under the National Labor Relations Act ("NLRA"); or (f) any other claims for which mandatory arbitration is not permitted by applicable law.

The FAIR Program also does not prevent You from filing a charge, testifying, assisting, or otherwise participating in any investigation or proceeding conducted by the equal employment opportunity commission, or another government FI to the extent You have a protected right to do so. Notwithstanding Your rights under this subsection, You agree that, to the maximum extent permitted by law, You may recover monetary relief with respect to a Claim only through the FAIR Program.

Further, the FAIR Program does not require the Fiscal Intermediary to begin arbitration proceedings or initiate any other procedure before taking any action regarding your relationship or affiliation with the Fiscal Intermediary with which you might disagree, such as coaching, counseling, warning, reprimand, suspension, investigation, discipline, demotion, changing your days or hours of work, or termination.

<u>Can A Claim Be Resolved in Court?</u> No. Under the FAIR Program, You and the Fiscal Intermediary each waive your respective rights to have a Claim decided by a court, judge, jury and, where permitted by law, an administrative FI. Instead, You and the Fiscal Intermediary agree that arbitration under the FAIR Program is the sole and exclusive method for resolving Claims. If either You or the Fiscal Intermediary files an action in court or another forum not contemplated by the FAIR Program asserting one or more Claims and the other party successfully stays such action and/or compels arbitration of such Claim, the arbitrator may assess reasonable costs and

expenses, including an award of reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred in seeking such stay and/or order compelling arbitration against the party that filed the action in court or such other forum.

How Should You Raise a Claim Under the FAIR Program? If You believe You have a Claim against the Fiscal Intermediary, you should first give the Fiscal Intermediary a chance to investigate and resolve the Claim before You file a demand for arbitration (the arbitration process is explained further below). You do not need to use any specific form to submit a Claim. Simply write a letter explaining Your Claim and the relief sought and submit the Claim statement to the Human Resources Manager. As part of this process, an Fiscal Intermediary representative might meet with You to discuss Your complaint. Or, depending on the nature of the Claim, the Fiscal Intermediary will investigate the Claim on its own, such as by reviewing its records. If You do not receive a response, or a satisfactory response from the Fiscal Intermediary within 30 days, you must follow the arbitration procedure set forth below if You wish to pursue the Claim.

How Much Time do You Have to File a Claim? An arbitration proceeding under the FAIR Program must be commenced within the time period prescribed by the statute of limitations applicable to the Claim being asserted. For purposes of statute of limitations, an arbitration proceeding is deemed commenced when a demand for arbitration is filed with the American Arbitration Association ("AAA"). Filing an internal Claim under the FAIR Program will not extend the time period within which You must file a demand for arbitration.

How does the arbitration process begin? To start the arbitration process, the party wishing to file a Claim must file a written demand in accordance with the rules of the AAA for starting the arbitration process. More information about the AAA may be obtained at www.adr.org or by calling 1.800.778.7879.

How is the arbitrator selected? Arbitrators will be selected by the parties in accordance with the AAA's Employment Arbitration Rules and Mediation Procedures. The arbitrator must be a licensed attorney or retired judge selected from the AAA's regional Employment Dispute Resolution Roster, or an equivalent list if such list is unavailable. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the arbitrator must be a retired or former judge or a lawyer who has at least 5 years of experience with employment-related claims. No person may serve as an arbitrator unless that person has confirmed in writing that he or she is bound by and will adhere to the requirements of the FAIR Program.

<u>Can an attorney represent You?</u> Yes. Any party may be represented by an attorney. But legal representation is not required, and You may represent yourself. If You need assistance finding an attorney, there may be resources available to you, such as the American Bar Association (www.americanbar.org and 800-285-2221 or 202-662-1000) or the Legal Aid Society (www.legal-aide.org or 212-577-3300 or 718-722-3100).

<u>When and where will Arbitration take place?</u> The arbitration will be conducted by the arbitrator in whatever manner will most expeditiously permit full presentation of evidence and arguments of the parties. The arbitrator will set the time, date, and place of the hearing, notice of which must be given to the parties at least 30 calendar days in advance, unless the parties agree otherwise. In the event the hearing cannot be reasonably completed in one day, the arbitrator will schedule the hearing to be continued on a mutually convenient date. Any arbitration hearing will take place

within Rockland County, New York, but the parties may agree to schedule the arbitration at any other place that is mutually convenient for the parties. Consent to changing the place of the arbitration will not be unreasonably withheld.

<u>What law applies to the Arbitration?</u> Arbitration under the FAIR Program will be conducted pursuant to the AAA's Employment Arbitration Rules and Mediation Procedures. If there is any conflict between the FAIR Program and the AAA rules and procedures, the FAIR Program terms will govern unless application of such terms would cause the AAA to decline to provide its services, in which case the AAA rules and procedures will govern (except that under no circumstance will an arbitrator have the authority to hear or decide any Claim on a class, collective, or other group or representative basis). The arbitrator must apply the substantive law, including the applicable burdens of proof and persuasion that would be applied by a court hearing the Claim in the venue of the arbitration. The arbitrator may grant relief that could be granted by a court hearing the Claim but will not have any authority to grant any other relief.

Can Claims be heard or decided on a class, representative, or collective basis? No. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary: (a) no arbitrator is permitted to hear or decide any Claim on a class, collective, or other group or representative basis; (b) all Claims between You and the Fiscal Intermediary must be decided individually; and (c) the AAA's Supplementary Rules for Class Action Arbitration (and any similar rules) will not have any applicability to any Claim. This means that if You have a Claim, neither You nor the Fiscal Intermediary will have the right, with respect to that Claim, to do any of the following in court or before an arbitrator: (a) pursue or obtain any relief from a class, collective, or other group or representative action; (b) act as a private attorney general; or (c) join or consolidate a Claim with the Claim of any other person. Thus, the arbitrator shall have no authority or jurisdiction to process, conduct, or rule upon any class, collective, private attorney general, or other representative or group proceeding under any circumstances. If there is more than one Claim between You and the Fiscal Intermediary, those Claims may be heard in a single arbitration hearing.

<u>Who pays for the arbitration?</u> The party claiming to be aggrieved is responsible for paying the applicable filing fee in effect and established by the AAA at the time the demand for arbitration is made. If You file the demand for arbitration and cannot obtain a waiver of the filing fee, You can ask the Fiscal Intermediary to bear such costs. The Fiscal Intermediary will review every such request in good faith and consider whether to cover all or part of such filing fee. The parties will equally share the arbitrator's fees and other costs of the arbitration. However, if sharing equally in the cost of the arbitrator's fees would cause you financial hardship, You can ask the Fiscal Intermediary to pay, in full, the arbitrator's fees and other costs. The Fiscal Intermediary will pay all of the arbitrator's costs and fees as necessary to implement this FAIR Program. Each party will be responsible for its own attorneys' fees and costs, but the arbitrator may award either party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, to the extent a court hearing such Claim could award attorneys' fees under applicable law.

<u>Will there be discovery or depositions?</u> Except as modified by the FAIR Program, all discovery will be governed by the AAA rules.

<u>Can You have witnesses testify at the arbitration?</u> Yes. At the hearing, the parties will have the right to present proof through testimony and documentary evidence, and to cross-examine

witnesses who testify at the hearing. The arbitrator will require all witnesses to testify under oath. The parties must exchange witness lists at least ten (10) calendar days prior to any hearing. A party may not present a witness at a hearing if the name of that witness was not provided to the opposing party at least 10 calendar days prior to the hearing. The arbitrator will have the authority to sequester witnesses, other than a party and the party's representative(s), from the hearing during the testimony of any other witness. The arbitrator(s) will also have the authority to decide whether any person who is not a witness may attend the hearing.

<u>Can the arbitrator determine a Claim before the arbitration hearing?</u> Yes. Upon a party's motion and after giving due opportunity to the parties to present their positions, the arbitrator may grant or dismiss a Claim, or a portion thereof, if the arbitrator determines, in accordance with the standards that would be applied by a court hearing the Claim, that all or part of a party's Claim fails to state a legal claim or that there is no genuine issue of material fact as to all or part of a party's Claim. The moving party must file all motions with the arbitrator at a date set by the arbitrator. Parties may file such motions before or after discovery is complete. But no such motion may be filed 20 days before the arbitration hearing is scheduled to begin.

<u>What if someone does not show up to the hearing?</u> The arbitrator will have the discretion to allow a hearing to proceed in the absence of any party or representative who, after due notice, fails to be present or obtain a postponement. An award, however, shall not be made solely on the default of a party; instead, the arbitrator shall require the party who is present to submit such evidence as may be required for the making of the award.

<u>Can there be split hearings?</u> The hearing cannot be bifurcated, which means that the same arbitrator must hear the evidence and render a judgment on the damages, if any, in one hearing.

Is arbitration confidential? Yes. You and the Fiscal Intermediary agree that all aspects of any arbitration, including any award and opinion issued, will be strictly confidential. Neither You, the Fiscal Intermediary, nor our respective attorneys in the arbitration proceeding will reveal or disclose any information regarding the arbitration proceeding to any other person, except that disclosure may be made to Your spouse, tax advisor, or attorney (each of whom You must ensure agrees to keep such information confidential), by the Fiscal Intermediary to its agents and employees, to comply with a valid court order, subpoena, or other direction by a court, to a relevant governmental entity to the extent You have a protected right to make such disclosure, or as otherwise required by law. If disclosure is compelled, You and the Fiscal Intermediary agree to notify each other as soon as notice of such compelled disclosure is received and before disclosure takes place. This confidentiality obligation does not apply to disclosures necessitated by a later proceeding between the parties.

<u>What will the arbitrator's award say?</u> The arbitrator must render a written award and opinion in the form typically rendered by employment arbitrators. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the arbitrator must issue his or her award within sixty (60) days from the date the arbitration hearing concludes or post-hearing briefs (if requested) are received, whichever is later. The arbitrator's award must set forth the factual and legal basis for the award, including his or her detailed legal reasoning, and contain a summary of the facts, the issues, the governing law applied, and the relief requested and awarded. It should also identify any other issues resolved and the disposition of any statutory claims. Disposition of any request for attorneys' fees must be addressed in the award.

The arbitrator's award will be final and binding on the parties. Judgment on any award may be entered and enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction.

How Long Does the FAIR Program Apply to You? The FAIR Program will remain in effect and survive the cessation of Your relationship or affiliation with the Fiscal Intermediary, regardless of the reason for such cessation.

<u>Choice of Law.</u> Arbitration proceedings under the FAIR Program shall comply with and be governed by the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act ("FAA") and not by any state law concerning arbitration. The parties acknowledge and agree that the FAIR Program evidences a transaction involving interstate commerce.

<u>Severability.</u> If any part or provision the FAIR Program or this agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such holding will not affect the legality, validity, or enforceability of the remaining parts and each provision of the FAIR Program will be valid, legal, and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. However, in the event the provision prohibiting class, collective, or representative actions is found to be unlawful or unenforceable, then the entire FAIR Program will be considered null and void.

Notices. Any notice required to be given to You will be directed to Your last known address as reflected in the records of the Fiscal Intermediary. Any notice You or your representative are required to give to the Fiscal Intermediary under this FAIR Program will be directed to 49 North Airmont Rd Montebello, NY 10901 with a copy sent by e-mail to ebruckman@prioritycareny.com. Any notice provided to the Fiscal Intermediary under this FAIR Program will only be deemed received when it is received by email.

<u>Amendment.</u> The Fiscal Intermediary reserves the right to amend or terminate the FAIR Program. Such amendments may be made by providing notice to You in writing of such amendment or termination. Any amendments will be prospective only. Your continuation of services after receiving notice of any amendment to or termination of the FAIR Program will be deemed agreement to such amendment or termination.

Waiver. No waiver may be granted by either party, except in writing. No waiver of any provision of the FAIR Program will constitute a waiver of any other provision of the FAIR Program (whether or not similar), nor will such waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in such writing.

By signing the agreement at the end of this Handbook, you confirm that You have read and understand the terms and conditions of the FAIR Program, which require You to submit all Claims to binding arbitration on an individual basis. No provision of any other document You may receive from the Fiscal Intermediary will be construed as a waiver of the provision prohibiting class, collective, or representative actions.

FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) & NEW YORK PAID FAMILY LEAVE (NYPFL) POLICY

The Company, on behalf of the Consumer, provides leave according to the (i) Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) and (ii) New York Paid Family Leave (NYPFL) Law to covered Personal Assistants in certain circumstances and as more fully described in this policy.

<u>Eligibility</u>

To qualify for FMLA leave, you must: (1) have worked for at least one Consumer for whom the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary for at least 12 months; (2) have worked at least 1,250 hours in the last 12 months; and (3) be employed at a work site where the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary for 50 or more Personal Assistants within 75 miles. If you have any questions about your eligibility for FMLA leave, please contact the Human Resources Department.

To qualify for NYPFL, a New York Personal Assistant whose regular schedule is 20 or more hours per week must have worked for a Consumer for whom the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary for at least 26 consecutive weeks preceding the first full day leave begins. A New York Personal Assistant whose regular schedule is less than 20 hours per week must have worked in the employment of at least one Consumer for whom the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary for 175 days to qualify for NYPFL. If you have any questions about your eligibility for NYPFL, please contact the Human Resources Department.

Leave Entitlement

<u>FMLA</u>. You may take **up to 12 weeks** of **unpaid** FMLA leave in a 12-month period, which is measured using a "rolling" method that is measured backward from the date you use any FMLA leave, for any of the following reasons:

- the birth of a son or daughter and in order to care for such son or daughter (leave to be completed within one year of the child's birth);
- the placement of a son or daughter with you for adoption or foster care and in order to care for the newly placed son or daughter (leave to be completed within one year of the child's placement);
- to care for a spouse, son, daughter, or parent with a serious health condition;
- for your own serious health condition which renders you unable to perform any of the essential functions of your position; or
- a qualifying exigency of a spouse, son, daughter, or parent who is a military member on covered active duty or called to covered active-duty status (or has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty).

You may take **up to 26 weeks** of unpaid FMLA leave in a single 12-month period, beginning on the first day that you take FMLA leave to care for a spouse, son, daughter, or next of kin who is a Covered Service member and who has a serious injury or illness related

to active-duty service, as defined by the FMLA's regulations (see Definitions section, Military Caregiver Leave subsection below).

<u>NYPFL</u>. You may take up to 12 weeks of NYPFL, for the reasons listed below, in a 52-consecutive week period. The 52-consecutive week period is measured using a "rolling" method that is measured backward from the date you use any NYPFL. NYPFL may be taken for the following reasons:

- To care for a spouse, domestic partner, child, stepchild, anyone for whom you have legal custody, parent (including stepparents and in-laws), grandparent, or grandchild with serious health condition;
- To bond with a child during the first 12 months after the child's birth or placement for adoption or foster care or to meet adoption or foster care obligations (leave to be completed within one year of the child's birth or placement); or
- To meet qualifying exigencies arising from the fact that your spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent is on active duty or "has been notified of an impending call to active duty" in the U.S. Armed Forces; or
- When you or your minor dependent child are under an order of quarantine or isolation due to COIVD-19.

Note that NYPFL is not available for the Personal Assistant's own serious health condition.

During NYPFL, paid benefits will be provided by the Company's NYPFL insurance carrier, at the level provided by law, which is currently 67% of the Personal Assistant's Average Weekly Wage, up to 67% of the NYS Average Weekly Wage. The NYS Average Weekly Wage is the average weekly wage paid across New York State during the previous calendar year and is determined and published by the New York State Department of Labor each year.

Pay under NYPFL is available from the first day of the leave (no waiting period). The insurance carrier, not the Company, is responsible for approving and paying benefits under the NYPFL Law. To receive such benefits, you will be required to file a claim with the carrier and to follow the carrier's requirements with respect to claim filing, certification, and supporting documentation (see NYPFL Claim and Certification Procedure section below).

If you are eligible for leave under both the FMLA and the NYPFL, your leaves under both of these laws will run concurrently to the maximum extent permitted by law.

Family Members Working for the Company

<u>FMLA</u>. Where eligible spouses both work for Consumer(s) for whom the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary, they will be limited to a *combined* total of 12 weeks of FMLA leave in a 12-month period for the birth/placement of and bonding with a child and the care of a parent with a serious health condition. The spouses will also be limited to a *combined* total of 26 weeks of FMLA leave in a 12-month period to care for a Covered Servicemember with a serious injury or illness (see Definitions section, Military Caregiver Leave subsection below).

<u>NYPFL</u>. The Company will not permit more than one Personal Assistant to take NYPFL at the same time to care for the same family member (e.g., where both spouses or other qualifying relatives work for Consumer(s) for whom the Company serves as a fiscal intermediary).

Definitions

<u>Serious Health Condition – FMLA</u>. For FMLA purposes, "serious health condition" means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves: (a) inpatient care; or (b) continuing treatment by a health care provider."

- Inpatient care means an overnight stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility, including any period of incapacity, as defined by the law, or any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care.
- A serious health condition involving continuing treatment by a health care provider requires any one or more of the following:
 - 1. A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive, full calendar days, and any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition, that also involves: (a) treatment two or more times, within 30 days of the first day of incapacity, unless extenuating circumstances exist, by a health care provider, a nurse under direct supervision of a health care provider, or a provider of health care services (e.g., physical therapist) under orders of, or on referral by, a health care provider; or (b) treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care provider;
 - 2. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care;
 - 3. Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition;
 - 4. A period of incapacity which is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may not be effective; and
 - 5. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments (including any period of recovery therefrom) by a health care provider or a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by, a health care provider.

<u>Serious Health Condition – NYPFL</u>. For NYPFL purposes, "serious health condition" means illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves: (a) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care facility; or (b) continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider.

- A serious health condition involving continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider requires any one or more of the following:
 - 1. More than 3 consecutive full days of inability to work, attend school, perform regular activities, or other incapacity due to a condition, plus any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity that involves treatment two or more times, or treatment at least once that results in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of a health care provider.
 - 2. Any period of inability to work, attend school, perform regular activities, or other incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition that requires periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider, continues over an extended period of time (including recurring episodes of an underlying condition), and may cause episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity (e.g., asthma, diabetes, epilepsy).
 - 3. A long-term or permanent period of inability to work, attend school, perform regular activities, or other incapacity due to a condition for which treatment may not be effective (e.g., Alzheimer's, severe stroke, or terminal disease). The family member must be under the continuing supervision of, but need not be receiving active treatment by, a health care provider.
 - 4. A period of inability to work, attend school, perform regular activities, or other incapacity due to treatment (including any period of recovery therefrom) by a health care provider for restorative surgery, or for a condition that would likely result in more than 3 consecutive full days of incapacity without treatment (e.g., cancer, severe arthritis, kidney disease).

<u>Qualifying Exigency</u>. For purposes of both FMLA and NYPFL, "qualifying exigency" means a situation arising out of the fact that the Personal Assistant's spouse, child, or parent is a military member in the United States Armed Forces, Reserves, or National Guard on covered active duty or who has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active-duty status ("Military Member").

"Covered active duty," for members of the Regular Armed Forces, means duty during deployment of the Military Member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country. "Covered active duty," for members of National Guard or Reserves, means duty during the deployment of the Military Member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country under a call or order to active duty in support of a "contingency operation," as defined by law.

A "qualifying exigency" exists where one of the following events occurs:

- 1. *Short-notice deployment*. To address any issue that arises from the fact that the Military Member is notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty, for a period of seven (7) or less calendar days from the date of notification;
- 2. *Military events and related activities*. To attend any official ceremony, program, or event sponsored by the military that is related to the covered active duty or call to covered active-duty status of the Military Member, or family support or assistance programs and informational briefings sponsored or promoted by the military,

military service organizations, or the American Red Cross that are related to the covered active duty or call to covered active duty status of the Military Member;

- 3. *Childcare and school activities.* To attend to certain childcare and school activities that are necessitated by the Military Member's active duty or call to active-duty status, such as: (i) arranging for alternative childcare; (ii) providing childcare on an urgent, immediate need basis (but not on a routine, regular, or everyday basis); (iii) enrolling in or transferring to a new school or daycare facility; and (iv) attending meetings with staff at a school or daycare facility;
- 4. *Financial and legal arrangements*. To make or update financial and legal arrangements to address the Military Member's absence while on covered active duty or call to covered active duty status;
- 5. *Counseling*. To attend counseling provided by someone other than a health care provider, for oneself, for the Military Member, or for the biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, or a legal ward of the Military Member, or a child for whom the Military Member stands in loco parentis, who is either under age 18, or age 18 or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability at the time that FMLA leave is to commence, provided that the need for counseling arises from the covered active duty or call to covered active duty status of the Military Member;
- 6. *Rest and recuperation*. To spend time with a Military Member who is on short-term, temporary, rest and recuperation leave during deployment for up to fifteen (15) calendar days;
- 7. *Post-deployment activities.* To attend arrival ceremonies, reintegration briefings and events, and any other official ceremony or program sponsored by the military for a period of 90 days following the termination of the Military Member's covered active-duty status; and to address issues that arise from the death of a Military Member while on covered active duty status;
- 8. *Parental care*. To provide certain care to a Military Member's parent who is incapable of self-care, and where each instance of the care provided is necessitated by the Military Member's covered active duty. Covered activities provided to the parent of a Military Member under this provision include: (1) arranging for alternative care for a parent of the Military Member; (2) providing care for a parent of the Military Member on an urgent, immediate need basis; (3) admitting or transferring the parent of a Military Member to a care facility; and (4) attending meetings with staff at a care facility where the parent of a Military Member resides or stays; or
- 9. *Additional activities.* To address other events which arise out of the Military Member's covered active duty or call to covered active-duty status, provided that Military Member and Personal Assistant agree that such leave shall qualify as an exigency, and both agree to the timing and duration of such leave.

<u>FMLA Military Caregiver Leave</u>. For purposes of Military Caregiver Leave under the FMLA, "Covered Servicemember" means:

• A current member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves) who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is

otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness ("Current Servicemember");" or

• A veteran who: (1) is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious injury or illness; (2) was a member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves); (3) was discharged within the five-year period before the eligible Personal Assistant first takes FMLA leave to care for him or her; and (4) was discharged or released from the Armed Forces under conditions other than dishonorable ("Covered Veteran"). An eligible Personal Assistant must commence leave to care for a Covered Veteran within five years of the Covered Veteran's active-duty service.

For purposes of Military Caregiver Leave under the FMLA "serious injury or illness" means:

- In the case of a Current Servicemember, an injury or illness that was incurred by him or her in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or that existed before the beginning of his or her active duty and was aggravated by service in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and that may render the Covered Servicemember medically unfit to perform the duties of his or her office, grade, rank, or rating; and
- In the case of a Covered Veteran, an injury or illness that was incurred or aggravated by him or her in the line of duty, while on active duty in the Armed Forces, and which manifested itself before or after he or she became a veteran, and is:
 - 5. A continuation of a serious injury or illness that was incurred or aggravated when the Covered Veteran was a member of the Armed Forces and rendered him or her unable to perform the duties of his or her office, grade, rank, or rating;
 - 6. A physical or mental condition for which the Covered Veteran has received a VA Service-Related Disability Rating ("VASRD") of 50 percent or greater and such VASRD rating is based, in whole or in part, on the condition precipitating the need for leave;
 - 7. A physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the Covered Veteran's ability to secure or follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of a disability or disabilities related to military service or would do so absent treatment; or
 - 8. An injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the Covered Veteran has been enrolled in the Department of Veterans Affairs Program of Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers.

Important limitation: If a Personal Assistant does not take all of his or her 26 workweeks of leave entitlement to care for a Covered Servicemember during the 12-month period, the remaining part of his or her 26 workweeks of leave is forfeited.

Maximum duration of leave in any 12-month period: The Military Caregiver Leave is applied on a per-Covered-Servicemember, per-injury, basis such that a Personal Assistant may be entitled to take more than one period of 26 workweeks of leave if the leave is to care for different Covered Servicemembers or to care for the same

Covered Servicemember with a subsequent serious injury or illness, except that no more than 26 workweeks of leave my be taken within any single 12-month period.

"Next of kin": A Personal Assistant is "next of kin" of a Covered Servicemember if he or she is the nearest blood relative of the Covered Servicemember (other than the Covered Servicemember's spouse, parent, or child). Unless the Covered Servicemember has specifically designated in writing a particular blood relative as his or her nearest blood relative for the purposes of the Military Caregiver Leave, the following is the order of Community used to identify the nearest blood relatives of the Covered Servicemember: (a) blood relatives who have been granted legal custody of the Covered Servicemember; (b) siblings; (c) grandparents; (d) aunts and uncles; and (e) first cousins. When no such designation is made, and there are multiple family members with the same level of relationship to the Covered Servicemember, all such family members shall be considered the Covered Servicemember's next of kin and may take FMLA leave to provide care to the Covered Servicemember, either consecutively or simultaneously. When such designation has been made, the designated individual shall be deemed to be the Covered Servicemember's only next of kin.

Intermittent and Reduced Schedule Leave

<u>FMLA</u>. If medically necessary, FMLA leave occasioned by a serious health condition may be taken intermittently (in separate blocks of time due to a serious health condition) or on a reduced leave schedule (reducing the usual number of hours you work per workweek or workday). Medically necessary means that there must be a medical need for the leave and the leave can best be accomplished through an intermittent schedule. FMLA leave may also be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule for a qualifying exigency relating to covered military service.

If FMLA leave taken intermittently is unpaid, the Company, on behalf of the Consumer, will reduce the Personal Assistant's salary based on the amount of time actually worked. In addition, while a Personal Assistant is on an intermittent or reduced schedule leave, the Company may temporarily transfer him or her to an available alternative position that better accommodates his or her leave schedule and has equivalent pay and benefits on behalf of the Consumer.

When intermittent FMLA leave is needed to care for an immediate family member or the Personal Assistant's own illness, and is for planned medical treatment, the Personal Assistant must attempt to schedule treatment so as to minimize disruption to the Company's operations. Personal Assistants should consult with the Consumer and Company prior to scheduling the treatment in order to arrange a schedule that best suits the needs of the Personal Assistant and the Consumer.

<u>NYPFL</u>. Eligible Personal Assistants may take NYPFL intermittently in no less than daily increments. The maximum number of days of NYPFL available to a Personal Assistant is calculated based on the average number of days the Personal Assistant works per week. For example, a worker with a schedule of 5+ days per week can take up to the then-applicable maximum weeks of leave multiplied by 5 days (the maximum is 12 weeks, so the worker would

be eligible for up to 60 days of leave in a 52-week period). For a Personal Assistant who works 3 days per week (60% of the work week) can receive only 60% of the then-applicable maximum leave (this would be 60% of 60 days, so the Personal Assistant would be eligible for up to 36 days of leave in a 52-week period).

<u>Concurrent Leave</u>. Where FMLA and NYPFL run concurrently, intermittent leave will be immediately deducted from the Personal Assistant's FMLA entitlement. Because intermittent NYPFL is measured in daily increments, intermittent leave will be deducted from the Personal Assistant's NYPFL entitlement each time the hours taken under FMLA add up to the number of hours in a Personal Assistant's usual work day.

NYPFL Contributions and Waivers

Consistent with the NYPFL Law, the Company, on behalf of the Consumer, will fund the NYPFL insurance policy through deductions from the pay of all Personal Assistants, except those who have filed valid waivers in accordance with this policy. The Company, on behalf of the Consumer, will make the maximum deductions permitted by law.

Personal Assistants whose regular schedule is 20 or more hours per week but who will not work 26 consecutive weeks, and Personal Assistants whose regular schedule is less than 20 hours per week and who will not work 175 days in a 52-consecutive-week period, may file a waiver of NYPFL benefits. Upon filing a waiver, the Personal Assistant will be exempt from making contributions to NYPFL and thus will not be subject to payroll deductions. However, the Personal Assistant will be ineligible for NYPFL benefits.

If the work schedule of a Personal Assistant who has filed a waiver changes so that he or she will work 26 consecutive weeks, or 175 days in a 52-consecutive-week period, the waiver will be automatically revoked within 8 weeks of the change. The Personal Assistant will then be obligated to make contributions, including any retroactive amounts due from date of hire.

Application for FMLA Leave and/or NYPFL

To take FMLA leave or NYPFL, a Personal Assistant must provide the Company with advance notice of the need for leave as follows:

- <u>Foreseeable Leave</u>. Where the need for leave is foreseeable (e.g., planned medical treatment, expected birth or placement of a child, planned medical treatment for a serious injury or illness of a family member, etc.), a Personal Assistant must provide the Company with at least 30 days advance notice of the need for leave.
 - If 30 days advance notice is not possible (e.g., because of lack of knowledge of approximately when the leave will be required to begin, a change in circumstances, or a medical emergency), the Personal Assistant must at least provide notice as soon as practicable under the circumstances. Normally, it should be practicable for the Personal Assistant to provide notice of the need for leave either the same day he or she becomes aware of a qualifying event or the next business day.
 - Whether FMLA leave is to be continuous or is to be taken intermittently or on a reduced schedule basis, notice need only be given one time, but the Personal Assistant shall advise the Company as soon as practicable if dates of scheduled leave change or are extended or were initially unknown. To qualify for NYPFL, Personal Assistants must provide the Company with notice as soon as practicable before <u>each day</u> of intermittent leave.
 - <u>Unforeseeable Leave</u>. When the approximate timing of the qualifying event and the need for leave is not foreseeable, the Personal Assistant must provide notice as soon as practicable under the facts and circumstances of the qualifying event. Absent unusual circumstances, it generally should be practicable for the Personal Assistant to provide notice 2 hours before a scheduled shift as required by the Company's **policy**. *it should generally be practicable for the Personal Assistant to provide notice within two business days after learning of the need for leave*.
 - A Personal Assistant who fails to provide advance notice in compliance with these policies must explain to the Company why he or she was unable to do so. Absent unusual circumstances, a Personal Assistant's failure to follow these policies will result in FMLA leave and/or NYPFL being denied or delayed.
 - The notice rules apply to <u>each day</u> of intermittent leave under the NYPFL.

If a Personal Assistant is planning a medical treatment or a series of treatments under FMLA or NYPFL or is taking Military Caregiver Leave under the FMLA, he or she must consult with the Company first regarding the dates of such treatment to work out a schedule that best suits the needs of both the Personal Assistant or the Covered Military Member, if applicable, and the Consumer.

Applications for leave under FMLA and/or NYPFL should be submitted in writing to the Benefits Administrator. Application forms are available in the Human Resources Department. In addition, Personal Assistants seeking NYPFL will be required to file a claim with the Company's NYPFL insurance carrier (see NYPFL Claim and Certification Procedure section, below).

Failure to provide proper notice of your need for FMLA leave and/or NYPFL may result in the denial or delay of protected leave, depending on the particular facts and circumstances.

FMLA Certification Procedure

If a Personal Assistant is requesting FMLA leave because of his or her own or a covered relation's serious health condition, the Personal Assistant and the relevant health care provider must supply appropriate medical certification. Personal Assistants may obtain Medical Certification forms from the Human Resources Department. When a Personal Assistant requests leave, the Company will notify him or her of the requirement for medical certification and when it is due (at least 15 days after leave is requested). If the Personal Assistant provides at least 30 days' notice of medical leave, he or she should also provide the medical certification <u>before</u> leave begins. Failure to provide requested medical certification in a timely manner may result in denial of FMLA-covered leave until it is provided.

The Company, at its expense, may require an examination by a second health care provider designated by the Company. If the second health care provider's opinion conflicts with the original medical certification, the Company, at its expense, may require a third, mutually agreeable, health care provider to conduct an examination and provide a final and binding opinion. The Company may require subsequent medical recertification. Failure to provide requested certification within the required timeframe may result in delay of further leave until it is provided.

The Company also reserves the right to require certification from a covered military member's health care provider if a Personal Assistant is requesting military caregiver leave and certification in connection with military exigency leave.

NYPFL Claim and Certification Procedure

To obtain NYPFL benefits, you must file a claim with the Company's NYPFL insurance carrier on the carrier's prescribed form(s). The Personal Assistant will also be required to provide the NYPFL insurance carrier with sufficient certification of the need for leave and supporting documentation as provided by the NYPFL Law, the relevant insurance policy, and the carrier's own requirements. For example, the Personal Assistant may be required to provide:

- Certification from a health care provider regarding the serious health condition for which the Personal Assistant needs leave;
- Documentation such as a birth certificate establishing the birth of a child;
- Documentation such as court documents or placement letters establishing that the Personal Assistant is in the process of adopting or has adopted a child or is fostering a child; or
- Certification of military exigencies and supporting military orders.

When you inform the Company of the need for NYPFL, the Company will provide you with a copy of the relevant claim form(s) and complete any employer portion(s). You can also obtain and file the claim form(s) directly through our NYPFL insurance carrier, **Standard Security**, via

phone: 800-477-0087, website: sslicny.com. Contact the carrier if you have any questions about the forms and documents you must submit in support of your claim for benefits.

Reporting While on Leave

While you are on NYPFL, you should notify the Company and/or the NYPFL insurance carrier as soon as practicable (within two business days, if feasible) if there is any change in your circumstances or if your dates of leave change or were initially unknown and become known or estimated.

Conditions of FMLA Leave and NYPFL

The following conditions apply to leave taken under FMLA and/or NYPFL pursuant to this policy, except where otherwise required by applicable law:

- A Personal Assistant taking an approved leave of absence may not engage in other work or employment during the leave of absence. If a Personal Assistant engages in other work or employment during the leave of absence, the Personal Assistant will be considered to have violated the terms of the leave of absence, and to have voluntarily terminated his or her employment.
- A Personal Assistant on approved leave who fails to return to work at the end of his or her leave will be required to reimburse the Company for all health insurance premium payments expended by the Company on the Personal Assistant's behalf during the leave, unless the reason the Personal Assistant does not return to work is due to: (a) the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition of the Personal Assistant or the Personal Assistant's spouse, son, daughter, or parent; (b) the serious injury or illness of a spouse, son, daughter, or parent, or next of kin, who is a Covered Servicemember; or (c) other circumstances beyond the Personal Assistant's control.
- Personal Assistants will not receive holiday pay during leave except as required by applicable law.
- A Personal Assistant may be subject to termination during a leave for reasons including but not limited to falsification of reason for or status of the circumstances surrounding the leave of absence.
- If business conditions require a reduction in force, Personal Assistants on an approved leave of absence will be considered for lay-off and treated in the same manner as active Personal Assistants.

Personal Assistant Compensation and Benefits during FMLA and/or NYPFL

Compensation during FMLA. As noted above, FMLA leave is unpaid. However:

- Nothing in this policy prevents a Personal Assistant from applying for worker's compensation or NYS Disability benefits. Leave which is covered by workers' compensation or disability benefits will be designated as FMLA leave to the maximum extent permitted by law.
- Personal Assistants not receiving workers' compensation, disability (including NYS short term disability), or NYPFL benefits will be required to use their accrued PTO and sick hours during FMLA leave, and such leaves will run concurrently with the Personal Assistant's FMLA leave. Personal Assistants will also be required to use any accrued PTO and sick hours during any waiting periods for disability benefits or workers' compensation benefits.

<u>Compensation during NYPFL</u>. As noted above, NYPFL is paid by the Company's NYPFL insurance carrier in accordance with the insurance policy, the maximum benefits set forth in the law, and the carrier's own rules and procedures.

Where leave is taken under NYPFL, the Personal Assistant may but is not required to use accrued PTO or sick hours during the leave. Use of accrued PTO or sick hours will allow the Personal Assistant to receive full pay during the leave until paid time off is exhausted.

Where a Personal Assistant is paid for accrued PTO or sick hours during NYPFL (whether concurrent with FMLA or not), the Company will be entitled to receive the NYPFL payment from the NYPFL carrier as reimbursement for the NYPFL portion of the amount paid to the Personal Assistant. In no event shall a Personal Assistant's use of accrued PTO or sick hours during NYPFL result in the Personal Assistant's receipt of more than 100% his or her average weekly wage.

<u>Health Insurance during FMLA and/or NYPFL</u>. To the extent required by law, the Company will maintain group health insurance benefits for Personal Assistants on FMLA leave and/or NYPFL on the same basis as coverage would have been provided if the Personal Assistant had been actively working during the leave period. Any share of group health plan premiums which had been paid by the Personal Assistant prior to leave must continue to be paid by the Personal Assistant during the leave period. Where the Personal Assistant is receiving pay directly from the Company on behalf of the Consumer (i.e., using sick, personal, or vacation time), deductions for group health insurance will continue to be made on the same basis as if the Personal Assistant was actively working. Where the Personal Assistant is not receiving pay from the Company on behalf of the Consumer, arrangements will be made for Personal Assistants to pay their share of the group health insurance premiums while on leave. If the Company pays the Personal Assistant's share of any premium payments, the Company reserves the right to recover the full value of those payments made in any manner permitted by law.

A Personal Assistant whose health insurance coverage is maintained pursuant to this policy during an approved FMLA and/or NYPFL leave will be subject to any changes in the Company's group health plan that occur while he or she is on leave (e.g., changes in coverage, premiums, deductibles). If a Personal Assistant's premium payment is more than thirty (30) days late while the Personal Assistant is on FMLA leave and/or NYPFL, his or her group health insurance benefits may be terminated, and the Personal Assistant will be extended continuing coverage opportunities in accordance with COBRA. However, if coverage is terminated for this reason and the Personal Assistant returns to work from FMLA leave, the Personal Assistant's group health insurance benefits will be reinstated, to the same extent the Personal Assistant would have been entitled to those benefits had he or she not taken leave.

If a Personal Assistant gives unequivocal notice of his or her intent not to return to work, the Company's obligation to continue group health insurance benefits will cease, subject to COBRA.

<u>Other Benefits</u>. An approved FMLA leave and/or NYPFL pursuant to this policy will not result in the loss of any employment benefit that may have accrued before the date the leave of absence started. For all periods when a Personal Assistant uses accrued PTO or sick hours concurrently with FMLA or NYPFL, benefits that are accumulated on an accrual basis will continue to accrue to the extent they would have otherwise, and deductions for group health insurance will continue to be made on the same basis as if the Personal Assistant was not on leave. Personal Assistants will not accrue or receive any benefits (other than group health insurance benefits as noted above) for periods where FMLA and/or NYPFL is not run concurrently with use of the Personal Assistant's accrued PTO or sick hours.

Return from an Approved FMLA Leave and/or NYPFL

Unless the Personal Assistant's employment was or would have been terminated for reasons unrelated to the leave (e.g., reorganization, lay off, reduction in force, etc.), the Company, on behalf of the Consumer, will restore a Personal Assistant who returns from approved FMLA and/or NYPFL leave to the same position that the Personal Assistant held prior to the leave or to an equivalent position with substantially similar duties, conditions, responsibilities, privileges, and status as the original position, subject to the terms, limitations, and exceptions provided by law.

Before returning from an approved FMLA leave granted as a result of a Personal Assistant's own serious health condition, a Personal Assistant must present a written fitness-for-duty certification from his or her medical care provider. A Personal Assistant's failure to provide such certification at the time the Personal Assistant attempts to return to work may result in a delay or denial of job restoration.

Personal Assistants are expected to return to work when the FMLA leave and/or NYPFL ends, unless a Personal Assistant requests and is granted an extension of leave as an accommodation or pursuant to another Company policy. If a Personal Assistant does not return to work on the agreed upon date after expiration of FMLA leave and/or NYPFL, and an extension of leave was not granted to the Personal Assistant, the Personal Assistant will be considered to have voluntarily terminated his or her employment.

With respect to certain "highly paid" or "key" Personal Assistants, there may be specified and limited circumstances under which the Company may refuse to reinstate such individuals following FMLA leave. This determination will be made in accordance with applicable law.

Further Information

Personal Assistants wanting further information regarding this policy should consult with the Human Resources Department.

The Company will not interfere with, restrain, or deny a Personal Assistant the exercise of any right provided under the FMLA or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA or for being involved in any proceeding under or relating to the FMLA. If a prohibited act has occurred, or the FMLA was not followed, a complaint may be filed with the United States department of labor, or a private action instituted.

The Company will not discriminate or retaliate against a Personal Assistant because he or she claimed NYPFL benefits, attempted to claim NYPFL benefits, or testified or is about to testify in a proceeding under the NYPFL Law.

This policy is intended to implement the FMLA or NYPFL and their accompanying regulations and local laws. To the extent this policy is inconsistent therewith, the law and regulations will govern. Further, to the extent any state or local law provides for additional leave benefits, the Company will comply with any such requirements.

NEW YORK CITY TEMPORARY SCHEDULE CHANGE LAW

Personal Assistants who have been employed for at least 120 days and worked at least 80 hours in NYC in a calendar year have the right to request two temporary schedule changes per calendar year for "personal events" pursuant to New York City's Temporary Schedule Change Law.

A temporary schedule change is permitted if the change relates to (a) the need for a caregiver to provide care to a minor child or care recipient; (b) the Personal Assistant's need to attend a legal proceeding or hearing for subsistence benefits to which the Personal Assistant, a family member or the Personal Assistant's care recipient is a party; or (c) any circumstance that would constitute a basis for permissible use of safe time or sick time. Personal Assistants are not required to use accrued sick/safe before requesting a temporary schedule change.

The types of schedule changes that Personal Assistant can request include: (a) a limited alteration in scheduled hours; (b) a temporary alteration to the location of work; (c) using paid time off; (d) permission to swap shifts with another Personal Assistant; and (e) permission to use short-term unpaid leave.

Eligible employees seeking a temporary schedule change must notify their Consumer as soon they become aware of the need for the change, must propose what temporary change they are seeking and set forth the basis for the need. If the request is consistent with what the Temporary Schedule Change Law requires, the Consumer will grant the request for up to one business day per request. Community, in its discretion, may permit the use of two business days for one request, in which case the Personal Assistant would not be entitled to another request in the same calendar year. If the initial request is oral, the Personal Assistant must follow up with a written request.

COMMUNITY HOME HEALTH CARE PA CONTACT INFORMATION

We are proud of our incredible customer service, and we want you to be able to reach us immediately. Should you have any issues, questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to call us. We will do anything we can to make sure you receive the proper assistance in a timely manner and upstanding fashion.

- 1. As soon as the Consumer or Designated Representative informs Community Home Health Care that you will be working for them, you will be assigned to an HR Representative who will guide you through the enrollment process.
- 2. As soon as all your paperwork is received by Community and your enrollment information is fully processed, you will receive a call from the Case Manager with the go-ahead to start working; you may NOT start working before you get this call. This will avoid a lot of complications, ensure a smooth beginning and ensure you get paid for hours worked.
- 3. On your first day of work, you will be assigned a Case Manager who will handle all your payroll and compliance needs.
- 4. If you have any payroll related issues, please contact your Case Manager. We will make sure all issues regarding payroll are handled the right way.

HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I acknowledge that I have received the **PA PROGRAM INFORMATION GUIDE & PERSONAL ASSISTANT HANDBOOK** ("Handbook") and have read and understand the terms and conditions discussed in the Handbook. I have had the opportunity to ask questions about the policies contained in the Handbook. As a condition of my employment, I agree to comply with all these rules and procedures, as stated in this Handbook, and any other policy that may be issued to me. I understand that the Company, and Consumer (as applicable), has the maximum discretion permitted by law to interpret, administer, change, modify or delete the rules, policies, and procedures contained in the Handbook at any time. I will be notified of any changes to the Handbook by the Company and my continued employment after receiving notice of any changes to the Handbook policies will be deemed consent and agreement to comply with the new or revised Handbook policies.

I expressly acknowledge that I have read the Fact-finding and Issue Resolution ("FAIR") Program terms and conditions, which requires me to submit any employment-related Claims to binding arbitration, and that I must pursue such arbitration on an individual basis. I understand that the FAIR Program constitutes a binding agreement between the Company and me to individually arbitrate any claim. Any changes to the FAIR Program will be issued to me in writing and, before being bound to any such changes in the FAIR Program, I will provide a signature on a written agreement evidencing my consent to the changes in the FAIR Program.

I understand that nothing in this Handbook alters the at-will nature of my employment, as stated in this Handbook.

I understand and acknowledge that I may be terminated by the Consumer for violating any rules or procedures in this Handbook.

Personal Assistant Name (Printed)

Personal Assistant Name (Signature)

Date

I have received the Policy Prohibiting Workplace Harassment.

Personal Assistant (Printed)

Personal Assistant (Signature)

Date

WELCOME TO COMMUNITY HOME HEALTH CARE! FEEL FREE TO CALL US FOR ANY QUESTIONS YOU HAVE

845-425-6555